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           1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

           2             (Transcript follows in sequence from

           3   Volume 1.)

           4             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  We are going to

           5   reconvene at this point.

           6             Ms. Kaufman, you may redirect.

           7             MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

           8                        DON J. WOOD

           9   continues his testimony under oath from Volume 1:

          10                    REDIRECT EXAMINATION

          11   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

          12        Q.   Mr. Wood, I just have a couple of questions

          13   for you, and the first has to do with some questions

          14   that Commissioner Balbis asked you in regard to the

          15   application of the effective date of October 20th, 2010.

          16   And I think you mentioned in your response to him that

          17   there are some provisions in the Image Access agreement

          18   that might relate to that question.  Can you elaborate

          19   on that?

          20        A.   Oh, yes, I did, and I do have that agreement.

          21   In Section 30.1, which is on numbered Page 23 of 408,

          22   there is language that says amounts owed for services

          23   provisioned or orders placed under prior agreements

          24   between the parties shall be due and owing under such

          25   prior agreements between the parties and be governed by
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           1   the terms and conditions of the prior agreements between

           2   the parties until the effective date of this agreement

           3   at which time the orders and services will be governed

           4   by the terms and conditions of this agreement.

           5        Q.   What does that mean in English?

           6        A.   Well, it's a little bit different than making

           7   rates retroactive, because certainly Express Phone is

           8   not and could not ask to have rates be made retroactive

           9   under the old agreement.  What I understood this

          10   language to do is to take terms and conditions for

          11   ordered services and move them from the terms and

          12   conditions of the prior agreement to the terms and

          13   conditions of this agreement on the effective date of

          14   this agreement.  And when you think about it, two

          15   things:  First of all, if AT&T were right that this

          16   opt-in ability didn't exist except at renewable time for

          17   an interconnection agreement, this language, the

          18   presence of this language makes no sense at all, because

          19   this language only makes sense in the context of another

          20   CLEC opting into this agreement during the term of the

          21   agreement.  So I think certainly that is at odds with

          22   AT&T's argument.

          23             And the other is when you think about the

          24   equity or the public policy which the AT&T witnesses

          25   have tried to bring in here, NewPhone or Image Access,
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           1   the other CLEC, did operate under the terms of this

           2   agreement, the opted in agreement, prior to October 20,

           3   and had the benefits of that operation under these

           4   terms.  So making Express Phone's operation subject to

           5   those terms does, in fact, put Express Phone not at some

           6   advantage, not allowing it to evade any responsibility,

           7   what it simply does is put Express Phone on the same

           8   competitive footing with NewPhone that it would have

           9   been all along if AT&T hadn't engaged in the

          10   discrimination and put the wrong standard agreement or a

          11   discriminatory standard agreement in front of Express

          12   Phone in the first place.

          13             The other advantage that's clear is NewPhone

          14   or Image Access operated under this agreement, and as I

          15   noted previously in my testimony, the dispute resolution

          16   in here is balanced between AT&T and the CLEC, and it

          17   creates an incentive if there is a dispute for the

          18   parties to sit down and work it out.  In the prior

          19   Express Phone agreement, because that language is so

          20   slanted in AT&T's favor, AT&T doesn't really have an

          21   incentive to sit down and work it out, and that is

          22   actually borne out by what has really happened.  Both

          23   Express Phone and NewPhone had basically the same

          24   dispute, billing dispute with AT&T.  NewPhone operating

          25   under this agreement, where AT&T had the incentive to

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    208

           1   come to the table and negotiate in good faith and work

           2   out the dispute, has, in fact, reached an agreement.

           3   The parties have reached an agreement of that dispute

           4   without having to come to you of that billing dispute.

           5             If AT&T had not discriminated and Express

           6   Phone had been operating subject to this agreement, it

           7   is very likely that they would have resolved their

           8   dispute with AT&T without coming to the Commission,

           9   without disrupting service to a large number of

          10   customers.  So that is what could have and should have

          11   happened if Express Phone had been operating under these

          12   terms all along.

          13        Q.   Thank you, Mr. Wood, for that answer.  My

          14   second line in redirect has to do with some questions

          15   that Ms. Montgomery asked you, and also I think

          16   Commissioner Graham.  And I kind of did a shorthand for

          17   this serial adoption, the concern that a CLEC might

          18   adopt an agreement today, and I think Ms. Montgomery

          19   said two or three weeks later they would adopt another,

          20   and they just continue down this serial adoption path.

          21   In your experience -- well, let me ask this question

          22   first.  Would that approach make any sense for a CLEC?

          23        A.   No.  The only reason that a CLEC is going to

          24   notice an adoption or an opt-in is if it uncovers a

          25   discriminatory provision in an existing agreement.  And
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           1   as a practical matter, we don't see that happening.  I

           2   mean, this is a parade of horribles that could happen,

           3   and yet other states permit opt-ins on a regular basis

           4   and there is no continuous rolling serial adoption of

           5   agreements.  You have an occasional adoption.  It's

           6   handled as a very -- you know, as an administrative

           7   straight-forward process.  There is a notice, the ILEC

           8   receives the notice, they change their operation to the

           9   new agreement.

          10             I have never seen this kind of serial adoption

          11   happening, and we have had plenty of times -- if it was

          12   going to happen, we have had since 1996, and it hasn't

          13   happened, and there is just no reason for it.

          14             MS. KAUFMAN:  And lastly, Commissioners, I do

          15   have a document that I would like to distribute and get

          16   a number for.

          17             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Sure.

          18             MS. KAUFMAN:  And I think this would be 43.

          19             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Yes, it would be 43.  What

          20   would be the short title?

          21             MS. KAUFMAN:  Let's see.  BellSouth versus

          22   North Carolina Utilities Commission.

          23             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Mr. Chairman?

          24             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Yes.

          25             MS. MONTGOMERY:  We would object to the use of
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           1   this exhibit.  This is redirect.  Mr. Wood had

           2   opportunities to present exhibits during both his direct

           3   testimony and his rebuttal testimony and this is a new

           4   exhibit being offered in redirect for the first time.

           5             MS. KAUFMAN:  Excuse me.

           6             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Sure.  Go right ahead.

           7             MS. KAUFMAN:  Ms. Montgomery took Mr. Wood

           8   through a line of questions asking him about various

           9   decisions and how they did or did not impact his

          10   testimony, and I am entitled to redirect on that same

          11   topic, and that is what this decision goes to.

          12             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  Ms. Cibula.

          13             MS. CIBULA:  I think we should give them a

          14   chance to ask their questions and see where it goes from

          15   there.

          16             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  I think that that

          17   sounds fair to me, as well.

          18             So, Ms. Kaufman, you may proceed.

          19             MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you.

          20             (Exhibit Number 43 marked for identification.)

          21   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

          22        Q.   Mr. Wood, I have just handed you what has been

          23   marked, I guess, as Exhibit Number 43, and let me

          24   represent to you that this is a decision of the United

          25   States District Court in the Eastern District of North
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           1   Carolina.  What is the date of this decision?

           2        A.   I am familiar with this decision.  It is

           3   January 26th, 2010.

           4        Q.   Ms. Montgomery asked you a series of questions

           5   regarding the fact that wasn't there some sort of

           6   requirement that a Commission approve an opt-in before

           7   it could become effective.  Do you recall those

           8   questions?

           9        A.   Yes, ma'am, I do.

          10        Q.   Was that issue presented to the federal court

          11   in Exhibit Number 43?

          12        A.   Yes, it was.

          13        Q.   And if you would turn over to Page 5, and if

          14   you would direct us to the pertinent provision in the

          15   case?

          16        A.   I'm familiar with the case.  I have got some

          17   relevant language that I have flagged on Page 4.

          18        Q.   Okay.  Maybe I have my pages wrong, I'm sorry.

          19        A.   Because there was certainly an argument by the

          20   plaintiff, which in this case was BellSouth, that there

          21   had to be a Commission approval of the opted in

          22   agreement before it could become effective.  The

          23   language on Page 4 states that nothing in the Act or the

          24   implementing regulations requires the same approval

          25   process for 252(i) opt-in requests.  And then lower,
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           1   later on the page in the last paragraph in the left

           2   column on Page 4, the wording of the Act purposefully

           3   fails to mention the need for further approval because

           4   any ICA, interconnection agreement, sought to be adopted

           5   under 252(i) will already have been approved following

           6   the original negotiation or arbitration of that

           7   agreement.

           8             So I was answering one of the Commissioners, I

           9   can't remember which one, about that.  But since in

          10   order to opt-in an agreement will already have been

          11   subject to Commission approval, you don't have to go

          12   back under a 252(i) adoption and have that reapproved,

          13   because it is already an approved agreement or it

          14   couldn't be opted into.

          15        Q.   And let me also direct you to Page 4, the top

          16   paragraph on the right.  Does that also address the

          17   issue of whether an objection by the ILEC would have any

          18   impact on the effective date?

          19        A.   Yes, it does, and I was familiar with that

          20   language, as well.  I recall Mr. Hatch in his opening

          21   pointing out that 47 CFR 51.809 has the requirement that

          22   the interconnection be available for opt-in without

          23   unreasonable delay, and his suggestion that the fact

          24   that the unreasonable delay language is there means that

          25   there must be some expectation that there is a period of
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           1   time between the notice and the effective -- that kind

           2   of deadman's land in there.

           3             What he didn't mention in his opening is that

           4   AT&T had argued that in federal court and lost.  The

           5   language here is the fact that the FCC requires approved

           6   interconnection agreements, ICAs, to be made available

           7   for opt-in without unreasonable delay, see 47 CFR

           8   51.809, does not suggest that the opt-in requests

           9   themselves cannot be self-executing or cannot be made

          10   effective as of the date of the requesting carrier's

          11   petition.  So the notice of adoption, the notice of

          12   opt-in provided to AT&T by Express Phone, there is every

          13   reason to expect that to be the effective date of the

          14   new agreement.

          15        Q.   And one more sentence in that paragraph.  If

          16   you would just read the last sentence of the paragraph

          17   we have been looking at which begins "there," there is

          18   no prohibition?

          19             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Mr. Chairman, I would object

          20   at this point.  I mean, Mr. Wood is basically reading

          21   this decision into the record.  It's clear that this was

          22   a prepared script.  This was more appropriate, perhaps,

          23   for Mr. Wood's rebuttal testimony, and the document

          24   speaks for itself.  It's a case decision, it can be

          25   argued by counsel in their brief.
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           1             MS. KAUFMAN:  Mr. Chairman, this is

           2   appropriate redirect.  Ms. Montgomery, as I said

           3   earlier, took Mr. Wood through a series of decisions in

           4   an attempt to illustrate that his opinion was incorrect.

           5   I am allowed to, I believe, redirect with a court case

           6   that says the very opposite of what AT&T is suggesting

           7   to you.  This will be my last question on this line,

           8   anyway.

           9             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  As I allowed latitude

          10   a little bit earlier, I think I'm going to allow you

          11   some latitude here.  And as I stated earlier, you can

          12   pose a question and he can answer the question, but we

          13   will not read the decision into the record.

          14             MS. KAUFMAN:  Absolutely, okay.  I will do

          15   that.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          16   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

          17        Q.   That paragraph that I referred you to, the

          18   last sentence that is in that paragraph, does that

          19   address the question of what the purpose and the result

          20   of an adoption or an opt-in should be?

          21        A.   It does.  And as I explained earlier today,

          22   and I believe this is consistent actually, Commission,

          23   with your Nextel decision, as well, that there shouldn't

          24   be a benefit to AT&T from its attempt to delay the

          25   implementation of an opt-in or to contest it somehow.
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           1   That you can make the effective date back on the date of

           2   the original notice.  And, in fact, this says that there

           3   is no problem to place the parties in the position they

           4   would have been or they would have occupied if not for

           5   the objection, which I understand to be fully consistent

           6   with your Nextel order and with Express Phone's position

           7   here.

           8             Yes, AT&T has contested this opt-in

           9   appropriately or inappropriately, because there is no

          10   provision for them to contest it, but the proper remedy

          11   here is to put the parties in the position they would

          12   have been otherwise, which is with the new agreement

          13   effective on October 20, 2010.

          14             MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Wood.

          15             Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  That's all I have on

          16   redirect.

          17             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Mr. Chairman, I would request

          18   the Commission's latitude to ask just a couple of

          19   recross on just this one document that we were just

          20   handed for the first time that has never been previously

          21   cited in the record in this case.

          22             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Ms. Cibula.

          23             MS. CIBULA:  It's within your discretion if

          24   you want to hear additional questions or not.

          25             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  I'll hear from you.
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           1             MS. KAUFMAN:  And, I'm sorry, I just want to

           2   lodge my objection for the record.  I'm not aware of the

           3   Commission having a procedure for recross.  I have never

           4   been aware of it.  And also I think that, again, AT&T

           5   opened the door on this, and this is a publicly

           6   available federal district court decision.  I don't

           7   think there is any basis for recross here.

           8             MR. HATCH:  Mr. Chair, let me explain to you

           9   that there is precedent.  I, representing AT&T years

          10   ago, was in a case with GTE.  They introduced a new

          11   exhibit on redirect.  I tried to get that excluded, but

          12   they gave me the latitude to ask cross on a brand new

          13   exhibit that had never been identified, never been cited

          14   before in the entire case on the theory that we got

          15   ambushed and we have the right to at least ask a couple

          16   of questions briefly on those exhibits.

          17             MS. KAUFMAN:  Mr. Chairman, this is not a new

          18   exhibit.  And, in fact, if Ms. Montgomery, you know,

          19   gave -- this is a federal court case.  This is not some

          20   new calculation that is being seen for the first time,

          21   and there is no basis to recross on the law.

          22             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  So let me think

          23   through this out loud and give you some logic as to

          24   where I'm thinking.  So if I allow recross that means

          25   they get a redirect to your recross.  If we agree to
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           1   that, then we will move forward in that fashion.

           2             MS. MONTGOMERY:  If the redirect is limited to

           3   the recross we have no objection.

           4             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  The redirect -- obviously you

           5   will cross on this and, therefore, the redirect I

           6   suppose will be in direct correlation to your cross.

           7             MS. MONTGOMERY:  And that's acceptable to us,

           8   Mr. Chairman.

           9             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  So we will move

          10   forward in that fashion.

          11                    RECROSS EXAMINATION

          12   BY MS. MONTGOMERY:

          13        Q.   Mr. Wood, I believe one of the passages you

          14   quoted from in this North Carolina case is on Page

          15   6 where it referred to the effective date being the date

          16   of the requesting party's petition.  Is that one of the

          17   passages?

          18             MS. KAUFMAN:  I object.  I don't think that

          19   Mr. Wood talked about Page 6, unless I missed it.

          20             MS. MONTGOMERY:  And I apologize.  Since I'm

          21   seeing this for the first time, Mr. Chairman, I was

          22   trying furiously to follow along, but I do believe there

          23   was one section of this that Mr. Wood quoted from.  And

          24   I apologize if I missed the page where he referred to

          25   the Commission in North Carolina finding that the
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           1   effective date was on the date of the petition.  Is that

           2   right?

           3             MS. KAUFMAN:  Are you asking me?

           4             THE WITNESS:  I'm going by the page numbers at

           5   the top right of the page, and the language that I

           6   referred to is all on Page 4.  I did not -- I don't

           7   believe I suggested the North Carolina Commission

           8   reached a decision one way or the other regarding the

           9   effective date being the date of notice.  I think what I

          10   was pointing out is, number one, there is no reason for

          11   a second Commission approval of an opted-in agreement.

          12   And, number two, the court's disagreement with

          13   BellSouth's claim that the effective date couldn't be

          14   the date of notice, and, in fact, the court here, top

          15   paragraph on the right column on Page 4, says that, in

          16   fact, they disagree with BellSouth and that those opt-in

          17   requests can be self-executing and it can be made

          18   effective as the date of the requesting carrier.

          19   BY MS. MONTGOMERY:

          20        Q.   The date they filed their petition, correct?

          21        A.   They are disagreeing with BellSouth's claim

          22   that the date couldn't be the date of the requesting

          23   carrier's petition, but must be later than that.

          24             MS. MONTGOMERY:  I have nothing further on

          25   this exhibit, Mr. Chairman.
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           1             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Thank you.

           2             Ms. Kaufman.

           3             MS. KAUFMAN:  I have no re-redirect.  Thank

           4   you.

           5             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Thank you very much.  At this

           6   time we are going to move into the exhibits.  Ms.

           7   Kaufman.

           8             MS. KAUFMAN:  We would move Exhibit 17 and 43,

           9   I believe.

          10             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  17 and 43.

          11             MS. MONTGOMERY:  We have no objection to 17.

          12   I think 43 is a document the Commission can take

          13   official recognition of.  We have no objection,

          14   therefore, if it's admitted as an exhibit, if that's

          15   what you would prefer.

          16             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  Thank you.  Duly

          17   noted.  And I think that is all for Express Phone with

          18   respect to exhibits.

          19             AT&T.

          20             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          21             We would move the admission of Exhibits 39 and

          22   40.  Exhibits 41 and 42, the Commission earlier this

          23   morning took official recognition of those documents, so

          24   I'm happy to move them in for admission into the record,

          25   but I don't believe that is necessary.
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           1             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  Are there any

           2   objections?

           3             MS. KAUFMAN:  We have no objection.

           4             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  Thank you.

           5             Have we moved Exhibit 38?  Was that for this

           6   witness?

           7             MS. KAUFMAN:  That was Mr. Armstrong, I

           8   believe.

           9             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  That was Mr. Armstrong's.

          10   Okay.  Thank you.

          11             MS. KAUFMAN:  Mr. Chairman, so are we

          12   admitting 41 and 42?

          13             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Yes.

          14             MS. KAUFMAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

          15             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  So that is 39,

          16   40, 41 -- I mean, 30, 39, and 40, and Number 41 and 42

          17   were already recognized by the Commission earlier.  I

          18   think we're clear on that.  Thank you very much.

          19             THE WITNESS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          20             (Exhibit Numbers 17, 43, 39, and 40 admitted

          21   into the record.)

          22             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  And, Ms. Kaufman, do you have

          23   you have any more witnesses?

          24             MS. KAUFMAN:  I do not.  And I would ask that

          25   Mr. Wood be excused, if that is all right with the
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           1   Commission.

           2             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Sure.

           3             At this time we will turn over to AT&T and you

           4   may call your first witness.

           5             (Pause.)

           6             MR. HATCH:  Sorry, Mr. Chairman.

           7             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  No problem.

           8             MR. HATCH:  I'm switching gears from my

           9   clerical duties to my lawyerly duties.

          10             AT&T would call Dave Egan, please.

          11                       DAVID J. EGAN

          12   was called as a witness on behalf of AT&T Florida, and

          13   having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

          14                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

          15   BY MR. HATCH:

          16        Q.   Mr. Egan, you have been previously sworn, is

          17   that correct?

          18        A.   Yes, sir.

          19        Q.   Could you state your name and business address

          20   for the record?

          21        A.   Yes.  My name is David J. Egan, E-G-A-N.  My

          22   business address is 722 North Broadway, Milwaukee,

          23   Wisconsin 53223.

          24        Q.   By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

          25        A.   I am employed by AT&T Service, Inc., and I am
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           1   a lead credit analyst.

           2        Q.   Did you prepare and cause to be filed Direct

           3   Testimony in this case consisting of six pages?

           4        A.   Yes, I did.

           5        Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to your

           6   Direct Testimony?

           7        A.   I do.

           8        Q.   Could you please provide those?

           9        A.   Yes.  On Page 3, Line 21, there is a date that

          10   reads October 10, 2010.  It should read October 20th,

          11   2010 on Line 21.  And then on Line 22 there is an amount

          12   reflected there.  The correct amount is 851,335.94.

          13        Q.   Are those your only corrections?

          14        A.   Yes, sir.

          15        Q.   Subject to those corrections, if I asked you

          16   today the same questions that are in your testimony,

          17   would your answers be the same?

          18        A.   Yes, they would.

          19             MR. HATCH:  AT&T would request that Mr. Egan's

          20   Direct Testimony be inserted into the record as though

          21   read.

          22             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  His Direct Testimony

          23   will be inserted as though read.

          24

          25
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           1   BY MR. HATCH:

           2        Q.   Now, did you prepare exhibits to your Direct

           3   Testimony DJE-1 through DJE-4?

           4        A.   Yes, I did.

           5        Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to

           6   those exhibits?

           7        A.   No.

           8             MR. HATCH:  I believe, Mr. Chairman, those

           9   exhibits have been previously marked as probably 18

          10   through 21?

          11             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Yes.

          12   BY MR. HATCH:

          13        Q.   Now, Mr. Egan, did you prepare and cause to be

          14   filed Rebuttal Testimony in this case consisting of

          15   three pages?

          16        A.   Yes.

          17        Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to your

          18   Rebuttal Testimony?

          19        A.   No, I don't.

          20        Q.   If I asked you the same questions today as are

          21   in your Rebuttal Testimony, would your answers be the

          22   same?

          23        A.   Yes.

          24             MR. HATCH:  Mr. Chairman, we would request

          25   that Mr. Egan's Rebuttal Testimony be inserted as though
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           1   read.

           2             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  That will be insert as though

           3   read.

           4

           5

           6

           7

           8

           9

          10

          11

          12

          13

          14

          15

          16

          17

          18

          19

          20

          21

          22

          23

          24

          25
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           1   BY MR. HATCH:

           2        Q.   And there were no exhibits to your Rebuttal

           3   Testimony, is that correct?

           4        A.   That's correct.

           5        Q.   Do you have a summary of your testimony?

           6        A.   Yes, I do.

           7        Q.   Could you provide that, please?

           8        A.   Sure.  Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, my Direct

           9   Testimony describes the past-due amounts owed by Express

          10   Phone at some key dates in the timeline here.

          11   October 20th, 2010, which is the date of the initial

          12   adoption request, the amount owing was approximately

          13   $851,000.  That would be a past-due amount.

          14             November 1st, 2010, which was the date of AT&T

          15   Florida's response to the initial request, there was

          16   approximately $1,012,000.  March 14th, 2011, which was

          17   the date of the second adoption request was

          18   approximately 1,343,000.  March 25th, 2011, which was

          19   the date AT&T Florida responded to the second adoption

          20   request, approximately 1,417,000.  And, finally,

          21   March 1st, 2012, which was the date my testimony was

          22   filed in this case, it was approximately 1,437,000.

          23             The testimony also refers to Number Attachment

          24   3, Paragraph 1.4 of the interconnection agreement which

          25   makes clear that Express Phone was obligated to pay all

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    235

           1   charges billed under the interconnection agreement

           2   including disputed charges.  I also describe the

           3   collection letter sent to Express Phone on February 23,

           4   2011, demanding payment of $1,268,490, the nonpayment of

           5   which led to the suspension of Express Phone's service

           6   on March 18th, 2011, and ultimately the disconnection of

           7   Express Phone's service on April 20th, 2011.

           8             In my Rebuttal Testimony I restate the

           9   collection letter timeline discussed in my Direct

          10   Testimony.  I also discuss AT&T Florida's experience

          11   with a CLEC named Digital Express, which Mr. Armstrong

          12   is involved with.  Digital Express has only paid $100 to

          13   AT&T Florida for services since starting in business in

          14   November of 2011, while they have been billed well over

          15   $300,000.

          16        Q.   Does that conclude your summary?

          17        A.   Yes, it does.

          18             MR. HATCH:  We tender the witness for cross.

          19             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  Thank you.

          20             Ms. Kaufman, you may proceed.

          21                     CROSS EXAMINATION

          22   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

          23        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Egan.  How are you?

          24        A.   Good afternoon, Ms. Kaufman.  Good, thank you.

          25        Q.   We have met previously for the first time.
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           1        A.   Yes.

           2        Q.   You have listed your areas of expertise on

           3   Page 1, Lines 9 through 17 of your Direct Testimony, is

           4   that correct?

           5        A.   Areas of responsibility is how I would

           6   describe it.

           7        Q.   Well, beginning on Line 15 you tell us you are

           8   a subject matter expert for AT&T in the areas of escrow,

           9   payment of rates and charges, nonpayment, and procedures

          10   for disconnection, correct?

          11        A.   Yes.

          12        Q.   So those are the areas in which you consider

          13   yourself to be an expert?

          14        A.   Yes.

          15        Q.   You don't consider yourself to be an expert in

          16   the interpretation of interconnection agreements, do

          17   you?

          18        A.   Just those sections.  So not the -- I would

          19   not claim expertise over the entire subject matter of

          20   interconnection agreements.

          21        Q.   But you don't claim to be an expert in

          22   interpreting interconnection agreements, do you?

          23        A.   No.

          24        Q.   And you don't claim to be an expert in the

          25   application and interpretation of the federal rules and
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           1   regulations that we have discussed at some length here?

           2        A.   No.

           3        Q.   Have you ever met Mr. Armstrong before this

           4   morning?

           5        A.   No.

           6        Q.   Have you ever been on any conference calls

           7   with Mr. Armstrong or anyone from Express Phone?

           8        A.   No, I have not.

           9        Q.   So would it be fair that any knowledge that

          10   you have of this case was provided by others?

          11        A.   No, I wouldn't agree with that.  I mean,

          12   certainly some information was obtained from others, but

          13   it was mainly, you know, reading the, you know, books

          14   and records of AT&T to come up with the information I'm

          15   providing.

          16        Q.   Have you ever been involved in any discussions

          17   in an attempt to resolve the disputes with Express

          18   Phone?

          19        A.   No.

          20        Q.   When was the first time that you became

          21   involved in the Express Phone matter?

          22        A.   I couldn't recall an exact date.  It was

          23   earlier this year, probably January/February timeline.

          24   I mean, in preparation for filing testimony.

          25        Q.   Okay.  Has AT&T presented any witnesses here

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    238

           1   who have had any direct contact with Express Phone or

           2   Mr. Armstrong?

           3        A.   Well, I'm the first witness, so I have not, so

           4   I can only speak to that.

           5        Q.   I'm going to -- well, let me just back up.

           6   Your area is very limited, but you would be the

           7   gentleman that I would ask about collection attempts and

           8   correspondence in that regard that has been sent to

           9   Express Phone, is that right?

          10        A.   Yes.

          11             MS. KAUFMAN:  Okay.  So I'd like to distribute

          12   an exhibit, Commissioners.  And it's in the red folders

          13   because there is just one document here that I believe

          14   AT&T claims is confidential.  We do not claim it as

          15   confidential.

          16             MR. HATCH:  Could I get a copy of the

          17   document, please?

          18             MS. KAUFMAN:  Are you set, Mr. Hatch?

          19             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  You may proceed.

          20             MS. KAUFMAN:  Even though these documents are

          21   in the record, I'd like to have an exhibit number for

          22   this, if that would be all right.  I think we are on 44,

          23   and a short title would be Staff Interrogatory Number 1.

          24   And, again, it is only the last page that is

          25   confidential, but since I want to talk about it
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           1   altogether, I thought it would be easier to do it this

           2   way.

           3             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Sure.  Thank you.

           4             (Exhibit Number 44 marked for identification.)

           5   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

           6        Q.   Do you have a copy of what has now been marked

           7   as Exhibit 44, Mr. Egan?

           8        A.   Yes.

           9        Q.   Did you perhaps the response to this

          10   interrogatory?

          11        A.   I did not, no.

          12        Q.   Who prepared this response?

          13        A.   I believe it was prepared by a co-worker of

          14   mine.

          15        Q.   Who would that be, sir?  Do you know who

          16   prepared this response?

          17        A.   I believe it was Lou Pagliaca (phonetic) is

          18   the gentleman's name.

          19        Q.   I know I'm going to butcher his name, but is

          20   Mr. Pagliaca here?

          21        A.   No, he is not.

          22        Q.   Okay.  Did you review this response before it

          23   was submitted?

          24        A.   No, I did not, just after.

          25        Q.   So is this correct, this is the first time
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           1   that you are seeing this response?

           2        A.   No, you asked if I had reviewed it before it

           3   was submitted.  I certainly reviewed it after it was

           4   submitted.

           5        Q.   You reviewed it after it was submitted.  Okay.

           6             If you would turn to the second page of the

           7   exhibit.  This letter has been discussed before.  It is

           8   the August 25th letter to Mr. Armstrong signed by Mr. --

           9   well, it's not signed, but Mr. Larry Thaxton's name is

          10   at the bottom, correct?

          11        A.   Yes.

          12        Q.   Do you know Mr. Thaxton?

          13        A.   I do.

          14        Q.   Does he work in Minnesota?  Wherever you're

          15   from.  I'm so sorry.

          16        A.   It's Wisconsin.  Actually he is in Atlanta.

          17        Q.   I'm a Florida girl.

          18        A.   It's the Great White North, so --

          19        Q.   He's in Atlanta?

          20        A.   He's in Atlanta; yes, ma'am.

          21        Q.   Does he report to you?

          22        A.   No, he doesn't.

          23        Q.   I believe you said you have met him before, is

          24   that correct?

          25        A.   Yes, on several occasions.  If I might explain
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           1   the relationship?

           2        Q.   I just want to ask you if you ever discussed

           3   the Express Phone matter with him?

           4        A.   Not specifically, no.

           5        Q.   Okay.  Mr. Thaxton, I guess, sent this letter

           6   to Mr. Armstrong on October 25th.  Did you have any

           7   input or were you aware that this letter was sent?

           8        A.   No.

           9        Q.   And so I guess you didn't discuss it with Mr.

          10   Thaxton, did you?

          11        A.   No.  Mr. Thaxton is in a different group.  He

          12   is in the credit group.  I'm on the collection side.

          13        Q.   Gotcha.  The interrogatory asks if -- to

          14   paraphrase, whether AT&T made any effort to collect past

          15   due amounts on October 20th, 2010, correct?

          16        A.   Yes.

          17        Q.   And then the answer is yes.  And the parties

          18   are referred to this letter of August 25th, correct?

          19        A.   Yes.

          20        Q.   Okay.  Now, would you agree with me that this

          21   letter of October 25th concerns the deposit that AT&T

          22   would like Express Phone to carry?

          23        A.   Yes, it's a deposit request.

          24        Q.   Okay.  And would you also agree, if you know,

          25   if there were discussions back and forth between the
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           1   parties in regard to the amount of the deposit?

           2        A.   That I don't know.

           3        Q.   Okay.  Do you know how the deposit discussions

           4   were resolved?

           5        A.   No, I do not.

           6        Q.   Would you flip over to the last confidential

           7   page, and I'm going to try to do this without -- I'm not

           8   sure what's confidential, and I'm going to try to do it

           9   without revealing anything.  Could you would take a

          10   minute to review this if you have not seen it.

          11             Have you ever seen this e-mail before from Mr.

          12   Greene?

          13        A.   No, I have not, so I'll review that.

          14             MR. HATCH:  If I might interject just one

          15   moment.  Just so that there is no confusion here, this

          16   letter and the other documents attached to the

          17   interrogatory response are not part of our interrogatory

          18   response, just to be clear.

          19             MS. KAUFMAN:  Well, it's my understanding it's

          20   only the last page that is not part of your response.

          21   Okay.  I'm sorry if that's what you said.

          22             MR. HATCH:  That's correct.

          23             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Duly noted.

          24             MR. HATCH:  Just trying to keep it between the

          25   rails --
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           1             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Understood.

           2             MR. HATCH:  And off the third one.

           3             MS. KAUFMAN:  I was just trying to reduce the

           4   number of exhibits, so --

           5             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  I have read through it.

           6             MS. KAUFMAN:  Okay.  Good.

           7   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

           8        Q.   So looking at this last page, would you agree

           9   with me that AT&T and Express Phone reached agreement

          10   regarding the amount of deposit that was acceptable to

          11   both parties?

          12        A.   That is what it indicates, yes.

          13        Q.   Do you have any reason to doubt that?

          14        A.   No.

          15        Q.   Okay.  Would you also agree with me that in

          16   determining the amounts of deposits that would be

          17   required, the letter states that those amounts will be

          18   based only on amounts that are not in dispute between

          19   the parties?

          20        A.   I don't see anything on here that speaks to

          21   that.  Maybe -- I may have missed something.

          22        Q.   Take a look at -- again, I'm not sure what is

          23   confidential, so I don't want to take a chance to read

          24   it out loud.  Take a look at Paragraph Number 4, and

          25   then underneath it is Paren 2, and it talks about how
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           1   the deposit amount is going to be calculated.  And take

           2   a look at the information that is in parentheses, and

           3   that was esoteric enough.

           4        A.   Okay.  I gotcha.  Yes, thank you.  It's a

           5   different color.  That helps too.

           6        Q.   Yes, I'm sorry.

           7        A.   That's what threw me off.  But, yes, I see

           8   what you're talking about.

           9        Q.   So you would agree with me that in the

          10   negotiation over the required deposit, AT&T agreed that

          11   in calculating the deposit they would take into account

          12   only amounts that were not disputed?

          13        A.   Yes, I would agree that is what it says.

          14             MR. HATCH:  I'm going to have to object if she

          15   is going to pursue this line.  Mr. Egan has already said

          16   he is not involved in the deposit collections with the

          17   credit folks.  He is in the collection side.  This is

          18   not his exhibit.

          19             MS. KAUFMAN:  Well, if that's the case, he

          20   also said he didn't prepare Interrogatory Number 1, and

          21   I guess we can move back and see what interrogatories

          22   that we have stipulated to should not be admitted into

          23   the record.  I think that as we discussed with him

          24   in my --

          25             MR. HATCH:  He has verified the truth of the
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           1   affidavit, the truth of the interrogatory in his

           2   affidavit.

           3             MS. KAUFMAN:  I think -- I don't know if you

           4   want to hear further argument, Mr. Chairman.

           5             Mr. Egan has been presented as the gentleman

           6   who knows about collection attempts here and it has been

           7   also represented to you that AT&T made a lot of attempts

           8   to try to collect these amounts.  I think this

           9   illustrates that is not the case.  They have presented

          10   no other witnesses on this topic that I'm aware of

          11   except for Mr. Egan.

          12             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Mr. Hatch, would you restate

          13   your original objection, please.

          14             MR. HATCH:  My objection is she is

          15   cross-examining him on a exhibit that is related to the

          16   credit folks, which is a deposit collection.  That is

          17   not his area of responsibility.  He said that up front,

          18   but she is pursuing it anyway.  He is involved in

          19   collections.  With respect to the interrogatory

          20   response, we submitted it and we submitted the affidavit

          21   where he attested to its veracity.

          22             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.

          23             MS. KAUFMAN:  Mr. Chairman, I think I can make

          24   this shorter for you, if you'd like.  I think he has

          25   acknowledged and admitted what I asked him, and I am
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           1   perfectly fine with the state of the record in that

           2   regard.  I don't intend to ask him any further questions

           3   on this.

           4             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  Thank you.

           5             MS. KAUFMAN:  And that's all.

           6             Thank you, Mr. Egan, for your patience.

           7             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Staff.

           8                     CROSS EXAMINATION

           9   BY MS. TAN:

          10        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Egan.

          11        A.   Good afternoon.

          12        Q.   Are you aware whether or not Express Phone's

          13   accounts were past due at the time it filed its October

          14   20th, 2010, adoption request?

          15        A.   Yes.

          16        Q.   And in your opinion was the relationship

          17   between AT&T Florida and Express Phone bound by the

          18   terms of its existing interconnection agreement at the

          19   time that Express Phone filed its October 20th, 2010,

          20   adoption request?

          21             MS. KAUFMAN:  I'm going to have to object to

          22   that question.  I think we have established Mr. Egan's

          23   area of expertise, and I think I expressly asked him if

          24   he claimed any expertise in the area of interpretation

          25   of interconnection agreements, and he said no.  He is
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           1   not qualified to answer that question.

           2             MR. HATCH:  Mr. Chairman, we're not offering

           3   Mr. Egan as an expert in the interpretation of

           4   interconnection agreements.  But by virtue of his

           5   training and experience and his job responsibilities, he

           6   is required to know and understand the particular

           7   provisions in the interconnection agreements that relate

           8   to collections.  That is what his testimony is being

           9   offered here today to support.

          10             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  I think I can hear from staff

          11   as to what -- no, no, no, from Ms. Tan as to -- you

          12   heard the objection.  Do you have comments on the

          13   objection as to why?

          14             MS. TAN:  Well, staff would agree with AT&T

          15   that Mr. Egan has experience in discussions regarding

          16   payments and collections.

          17             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Ms. Cibula.

          18             MS. CIBULA:  I think it has been established

          19   what the witness' background is, and he could probably

          20   answer the question and the Commission could give the

          21   weight that it thinks it's due based on -- with his

          22   background.

          23             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  So I think with that I will

          24   allow the line of questioning.

          25             THE WITNESS:  Could you please repeat that?
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           1   BY MS. TAN:

           2        Q.   In your opinion, was the relationship between

           3   AT&T Florida and Express Phone bound by the terms of its

           4   existing interconnection agreement at the time that

           5   Express Phone filed its October 20th, 2010, adoption

           6   request?

           7        A.   Yes.

           8             MS. KAUFMAN:  I think I have stated my

           9   objection for the record.  Thank you.

          10             THE WITNESS:  My answer is yes.

          11             MS. TAN:  Thank you.

          12             Staff has no further questions.

          13             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  Thank you.

          14             Commissioners?  Commissioner Brown.

          15             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you.

          16             And thank you for your testimony.  Working in

          17   the collections department, I'm curious why it took

          18   until February 3rd to pursue collection actions against

          19   Express Phone?

          20             THE WITNESS:  I appreciate the question,

          21   Commissioner.  The situation really was this, there were

          22   a lot of customers that were, you know, and still are

          23   claiming promotional credits throughout our southeast

          24   territory.  And really the ability to treat customers

          25   for nonpayment was taken away from the collection group.
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           1   It was all referred to legal, and it was kind of -- I

           2   guess I would describe it as a legal hold on us pursuing

           3   collections.  So our position in collections is we very

           4   much did want to pursue those balances and a lot sooner

           5   than February, but we were prevented from doing so from

           6   internal counsel.

           7             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  And as a follow-up, do

           8   you know why, do you personally know why legal did not

           9   pursue action?

          10             MR. HATCH:  Objection.  To the intent that she

          11   is asking a question that's going to get involved in

          12   attorney/client privilege.  I apologize, Commissioner.

          13             COMMISSIONER BROWN:  I will rephrase it.

          14             Do you have any other knowledge as to why any

          15   other type of collection actions were not pursued

          16   against Express Phone outside of your department?

          17             THE WITNESS:  No.

          18             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Any further questions by

          19   Commissioners?  All right.

          20             Seeing none, redirect.

          21             MR. HATCH:  No redirect.

          22             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  At this time we are going to

          23   deal with the exhibits.

          24             MR. HATCH:  AT&T would move admission of 18

          25   through 21.
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           1             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  Ms. Kaufman.

           2             MS. KAUFMAN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  We would

           3   move Exhibit 44, please.

           4             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  Any objections?

           5             All right.  Seeing none -- thank you very

           6   much.

           7             THE WITNESS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

           8             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  And those exhibits have been

           9   moved into the record.

          10             (Exhibit Numbers 18, 19, 20, 21, and 44

          11   admitted into the record.)

          12             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  AT&T, your next witness,

          13   please.

          14             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          15             At this time we would call William Greenlaw.

          16             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Thank you.

          17                    WILLIAM E. GREENLAW

          18   was called as a witness on behalf of AT&T Florida, and

          19   having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

          20                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

          21   BY MS. MONTGOMERY:

          22        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Greenlaw.  You were

          23   present this morning when the oath was administered to

          24   all the witnesses, is that correct?

          25        A.   Yes, I was.
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           1        Q.   And you took that oath?

           2        A.   Yes, I did.

           3        Q.   Can you please state your name and business

           4   address?

           5        A.   Yes.  William Greenlaw, 311 South Akard,

           6   Dallas, Texas 75202.

           7        Q.   And by whom are you employed?

           8        A.   AT&T Florida.

           9        Q.   And can you please briefly describe your job

          10   title and job duties?

          11        A.   Yes.  I am an area manager in our wholesale

          12   regulatory relations group and primarily support

          13   policies governing our interconnection agreements with

          14   both CLECs and wireless carriers.

          15        Q.   And, Mr. Greenlaw, did you previously cause to

          16   be filed on March 1st, 2012, 12 pages of Direct

          17   Testimony?

          18        A.   Yes, I did.

          19        Q.   And do you have any corrections to that

          20   testimony?

          21        A.   Actually one, kind of pursuant to the same

          22   correction that Mr. Egan provided.  I also cited the

          23   past due balance that Express Phone carried in October

          24   of 2010 on Page 7, Line 14, of my Direct Testimony.  The

          25   figure that was originally cited was the $930,352 -- or
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           1   32, excuse me, dollar amount, and I would also move to

           2   change that to $851,335.94.  But that is my only

           3   correction on my direct.

           4        Q.   And subject to that correction, if I were to

           5   ask you today the same questions that you were asked in

           6   your Direct Testimony, would your answers be the same?

           7        A.   Yes, they would.

           8             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Mr. Chairman, at this time we

           9   would move that Mr. Greenlaw's Direct Testimony be

          10   inserted into the record as though read.

          11             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  Let the record

          12   reflect that his prefiled testimony is inserted as

          13   though read.

          14             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Thank you.

          15

          16

          17

          18

          19

          20

          21

          22

          23

          24

          25
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           1   BY MS. MONTGOMERY:

           2        Q.   Mr. Greenlaw, did you attach three exhibits to

           3   your Direct Testimony?

           4        A.   Yes, I did.

           5        Q.   And do you have any changes to those three

           6   exhibits?

           7        A.   No, I do not.

           8             MS. MONTGOMERY:  And for the record, those

           9   were identified as WGE-1 through 3, and on the Composite

          10   Exhibit List it is Exhibits 22 through 24.

          11   BY MS. MONTGOMERY:

          12        Q.   Mr. Greenlaw, did you also cause to be

          13   submitted on March 29th ten pages of Rebuttal Testimony?

          14        A.   Yes, I did.

          15        Q.   And do you have any changes or corrections to

          16   that testimony?

          17        A.   Just one pursuant to the exact same correction

          18   as cited in my Direct.  On Page 9, Line 12, of my

          19   Rebuttal Testimony, the same past due balance is cited,

          20   the $930,932 amount.  And, again, I would move to change

          21   that to $851,335.94.  But that is my only correction.

          22        Q.   Thank you.  And if I were to ask you today the

          23   same corrections that you were asked in your Rebuttal

          24   Testimony, would your answers be the same?

          25        A.   Yes, they would.
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           1             MS. MONTGOMERY:  At this time I move that Mr.

           2   Greenlaw's Rebuttal Testimony be inserted into the

           3   record as though read.

           4             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  Let the record reflect

           5   that.

           6             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Thank you.

           7
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          25

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    277

           1   BY MS. MONTGOMERY:

           2        Q.   And did you also attach various exhibits to

           3   your Rebuttal Testimony?

           4        A.   I did.

           5        Q.   And there were eight exhibits, is that

           6   correct?

           7        A.   I believe so.

           8        Q.   And do you have any changes to those exhibits?

           9        A.   No, I do not.

          10        Q.   And those are Exhibits WEG-4 through WEG-11?

          11        A.   Correct.

          12             MS. MONTGOMERY:  And for the record, those are

          13   Exhibits 27 through 34 in the Composite Exhibit List.

          14   BY MS. MONTGOMERY:

          15        Q.   Mr. Greenlaw, have you prepared a summary of

          16   your Direct and Rebuttal testimony?

          17        A.   Yes, I did.

          18        Q.   Can you please present that at this time?

          19        A.   Sure.  As we have all heard today, AT&T

          20   Florida does agree with Express Phone on at least one

          21   point, and that is the issue at dispute in this docket

          22   is very simple.  We just disagree on what that issue is.

          23   By now I think we all understand the literal meaning of

          24   the words contained in Section 252(i) and in 51.809 when

          25   they are read without any additional context or
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           1   otherwise viewed in a vacuum.  But the Act was not meant

           2   to be viewed in a vacuum or interpreted in piece-parts

           3   whereby certain sections are applicable but other

           4   relevant sections are not.

           5             While my legal counsel further address the

           6   merits of contract law and other legal precedent and how

           7   that applies to the particulars in this case at the

           8   appropriate time, it is clear the Act was meant to be

           9   viewed as a whole and in concert, with not in opposition

          10   to, other existing --

          11             MS. KAUFMAN:  Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry.  I hate

          12   to interrupt, but I'm ready to be corrected if Mr. Egan

          13   addresses these provisions in his testimony either

          14   direct or prefiled about the interpretation of the Act.

          15   And I believe the summary is supposed to be limited to

          16   testimony that has been prefiled.

          17             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Mr. Greenlaw does address the

          18   provisions of the Act and how they apply to the various

          19   requests that Express Phone has made here, and he is

          20   simply summarizing those positions here.  I don't

          21   believe this is much more than -- on this point than he

          22   has already stated.

          23             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.

          24             MS. KAUFMAN:  You know, I'm not trying to bog

          25   down the process.  I don't recall him anywhere
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           1   testifying about the Act and its entire contents.  And

           2   if he's done with that, I'm happy to move on.

           3             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  Thank you.  You may

           4   proceed.

           5             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  I'll try to resume past

           6   that point, although this next paragraph may bring

           7   another objection.

           8             MS. KAUFMAN:  At least he's giving me warning.

           9             THE WITNESS:  Yes.  The irony is if you read

          10   all of Section 251 and 252, the primary focus of those

          11   sections is addressing the ways and means by which a

          12   CLEC can enter into an approved agreement with the ILEC,

          13   not to escape from such a valid agreement after it's

          14   executed by both parties and approved by the appropriate

          15   state commission.

          16             At the end of the day, though, putting this

          17   aside, regardless of whether any of the Express Phone

          18   arguments today have gained any merit in the

          19   Commission's eyes or not, it doesn't change the known

          20   facts of the case nor should it change its outcome.  The

          21   initial term of the agreement between Express Phone and

          22   AT&T Florida did not expire until November of 2011,

          23   almost 13 months after the initial October 2010 request

          24   was received from Express Phone regarding adopting the

          25   Image Access agreement that was actually approved in
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           1   Texas.  At the time Express Phone made its October 2010

           2   request, it was not within the stated negotiation window

           3   that is clearly outlined in its current and effective

           4   agreement, and Express Phone owed over $800,000 in

           5   past-due bill charges.  At that time, AT&T Florida

           6   properly advised Express Phone that the inquiry was not

           7   appropriate on November 1st, 2010.

           8             Five months then passed, approximately five

           9   months.  And in March of 2011, Express Phone made its

          10   second request regarding adopting the same agreement.

          11   By that time Express Phone owed approximately

          12   1.4 million in past due charges.  However, at that point

          13   the negotiation window of their current and effective

          14   agreement had opened as of February 6th, 2011.  So given

          15   those terms, AT&T offered Express Phone acceptance of

          16   the request conditioned upon the material breach of the

          17   current agreement being cured, and Express Phone did not

          18   do so.

          19             With this information as a backdrop, the

          20   record will show AT&T has treated all CLECs in the state

          21   of Florida, including Express Phone, on a

          22   nondiscriminatory basis with respect to 252(i) adoption

          23   requests.  The adoption of Digital Express that is

          24   referenced briefly in my rebuttal and was referenced

          25   this morning is actually a prime example of that.
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           1             Finally, there are other parts of Section 252

           2   of the Act worth noting aside from 252(i) by itself.

           3   Section 252(e) provides parameters by which a state

           4   commission can reject an interconnection agreement for,

           5   among other factors, whether the implementation of such

           6   an agreement is not consistent with the public interest,

           7   convenience, or necessity.  In fact, as I have noted in

           8   my filed testimony, this Commission has utilized the

           9   public interest clause in past decisions involving

          10   approval of interconnection agreements in Florida and

          11   it's entirely appropriate to do so here.

          12             The public interest would not be served in any

          13   way by allowing a CLEC, such as Express Phone, to use

          14   252(i) solely to opt out of a current and effective

          15   agreement outside of any of the termination or

          16   negotiation parameters that exist within that agreement

          17   simply to escape the obligations that they have under

          18   such an agreement.  So I respectfully submit to you that

          19   AT&T's handling of Express Phone's request to adopt the

          20   Image Access ICAs were both proper and appropriate under

          21   the Telecom Act as well as under the terms of their

          22   current agreement and ask that the Commission rule in

          23   favor of AT&T in the issues in dispute in this docket.

          24             Thank you.

          25             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Thank you.
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           1             At this time we tender Mr. Greenlaw for

           2   cross-examination.

           3             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Thank you.  Ms. Kaufman.

           4             MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Commissioners, Mr.

           5   Chairman.

           6                     CROSS EXAMINATION

           7   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

           8        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Greenlaw.

           9        A.   Good afternoon.

          10        Q.   In your summary, and I think in your testimony

          11   as well, you say that you are a director in the AT&T

          12   wholesale organization, is that correct?

          13        A.   An area manager.  I am in the wholesale

          14   organization.

          15        Q.   So what company do you work for?

          16        A.   My payroll company is AT&T Services, Inc.  But

          17   for the purposes of this docket I represent AT&T

          18   Florida.

          19        Q.   Do you have responsibility for certain states

          20   in your job or certain entities?

          21        A.   No, no specific states.

          22        Q.   Have you ever met Mr. Armstrong prior to

          23   today?

          24        A.   No, not prior to today.

          25        Q.   Have you ever personally been involved in any
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           1   meetings or discussions with Mr. Armstrong or any

           2   Express Phone personnel?

           3        A.   No, I have not.

           4        Q.   When were you first asked to draft testimony

           5   for this case?

           6        A.   I'm just trying to give you an accurate

           7   answer.  Approximately fall of 2011, early this year

           8   when the docket was opened and I was assigned to the

           9   case when Direct Testimony and a schedule was set.

          10        Q.   So the first time of your -- the first time

          11   you became involved in this matter was when the hearing

          12   was set and AT&T knew it had to file testimony?

          13        A.   That's correct.

          14        Q.   And you haven't had any personal involvement

          15   in this matter prior to that, is that correct?

          16        A.   That is also correct.

          17        Q.   Okay.  Now, I think that you mentioned in your

          18   summary, and I believe this letter is attached both to

          19   your testimony and also Mr. Armstrong's, the

          20   November 1st letter, and I believe it's WEG-1 -- let me

          21   see if I have that right?

          22        A.   I'm paging to it.  I'm familiar with the

          23   letter.

          24        Q.   I want to look at it.

          25        A.   It is WEG-1.
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           1        Q.   This is the November 1st, 2010, letter that

           2   AT&T sent to Express Phone after it received Express

           3   Phone's notice of adoption, correct?

           4        A.   Express Phone's request; but, yes.  I realize

           5   that is an issue we agree to disagree on.

           6        Q.   Absolutely.  Did you review this letter before

           7   it was sent?

           8        A.   No, not specifically.

           9        Q.   Who is Tina Rylander (phonetic)?

          10        A.   Tina Rylander is a manager in our contract

          11   administration group.

          12        Q.   Is she a witness here today?

          13        A.   No, she is not.

          14        Q.   Now, you'll have to help me with this.  There

          15   is a letter under her stamp that looks like an F to me.

          16   Do you have any idea what that is or what that is

          17   supposed to represent?

          18        A.   Honestly, no.  I believe it's an overzealous

          19   attempt at a unique signature, but it's not my

          20   signature.

          21        Q.   And then below Ms. Rylander's stamped

          22   signature there is a name of Eddie A. Reed (phonetic),

          23   correct?

          24        A.   Correct.

          25        Q.   I'm trying to understand the genesis of this
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           1   letter.  Ms. Rylander stamped her signature on this for

           2   Mr. Reed?

           3        A.   Your guess is as good as mine.  It appears

           4   that is what happened.  For clarification, Mr. Reed was

           5   a director in the contract management organization, so

           6   Ms. Rylander would have reported to him.  This is a form

           7   letter that basically is sent to CLECs that make a

           8   request for adoption, and so I would assume Mr. Reed's

           9   signature or printed name is on that because it is a

          10   form letter.

          11        Q.   And this is the form letter that you sent or

          12   that AT&T sent objecting to Express Phone's, as we call

          13   it, notice of adoption, correct?

          14        A.   As you call it, yes.

          15        Q.   How many other letters like this have been

          16   sent out to other CLECs, if this is a form letter?

          17        A.   I do not have an exact number.

          18        Q.   Now, you would agree with me, would you not,

          19   that the only reason that is given in this November 1st

          20   letter for AT&T's objection to Express Phone's notice of

          21   adoption is the fact that the window for negotiation has

          22   not opened, is that correct?

          23        A.   I would agree.

          24        Q.   There are no past due amounts mentioned in

          25   this letter, are there?

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    286

           1        A.   Correct.

           2        Q.   And you wouldn't expect Express Phone to take

           3   anything from this letter other than what's on the

           4   printed page, would you?

           5        A.   With respect to this request, no.

           6        Q.   Now, on Page 3 of your Direct Testimony you

           7   talk about this letter beginning at the top of the page,

           8   correct?

           9        A.   Yes, I do, in general terms.

          10        Q.   Okay.  And the question is how did AT&T

          11   Florida respond to the October 2010 request, and you say

          12   AT&T denied Express Phone's 2010 request primarily, and

          13   then you go on to mention the negotiation window not

          14   being open.  Were there other reasons that AT&T had that

          15   aren't expressed in the letter to your knowledge?

          16        A.   To my knowledge, no.  Because at the time we

          17   would have receive a request, the first criteria that

          18   our contract team would look at in accordance with our

          19   policy would be whether the current and effective

          20   agreement is within its negotiation window.  Since that

          21   wasn't the case here, Express Phone received the letter

          22   they received in response.

          23        Q.   On that same paragraph we have been looking at

          24   on Page 3, beginning on Line 7, in the middle there you

          25   say had that not been the case, the negotiation window
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           1   issue, AT&T would have conditionally accepted the

           2   request.  Do you see that?

           3        A.   I do see that.

           4        Q.   Okay.  And you mention in your summary, and we

           5   have talked today at some length about 252(i) and the

           6   implementing regulations.  Is there any basis in there

           7   for a conditional acceptance?

           8        A.   Are you asking me specifically in the words in

           9   252(i)?

          10        Q.   And in 51.809, which is the implementing

          11   regulations that you mentioned?

          12        A.   Not in those literal sections.

          13        Q.   In your testimony -- you are still on your

          14   Direct at the bottom of Page 3 and moving up to the top

          15   of Page 4, you are discussing what is Issue 1 in this

          16   case in regard to whether there was any issue regarding

          17   the denial of the adoption due to equitable relief,

          18   including laches, estoppel, and waiver, correct?

          19        A.   Correct.

          20        Q.   Okay.  And I know you're not a lawyer, so I'm

          21   not going to ask you to opine on those various

          22   doctrines, but I would ask you if you could agree with

          23   me that in general those equitable doctrines address a

          24   situation where one party sits on their rights and

          25   doesn't act to the detriment of another party.  Can you
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           1   agree to that?

           2             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Mr. Chairman, I would object.

           3   That's clearly a legal question, and Mr. Greenlaw is

           4   being here to offer a legal opinion or to define

           5   equitable terms.

           6             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Ms. Kaufman, if you could

           7   restate the question.

           8             MS. KAUFMAN:  Yes.  Mr. Chairman, if you look

           9   at Page 3, he is discussing those very issues.  And so

          10   in order for him to be competent to discuss them, I

          11   think he would have to have a layperson's understanding

          12   of what they are.

          13             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Greenlaw is

          14   laying a foundation of building block facts to build a

          15   legal argument on what's clearly a legal issue

          16   identified in the prehearing order in this case.  I

          17   think he can offer facts, but not legal.

          18             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  Ms. Kaufman.

          19             MS. KAUFMAN:  I was just going to say that if

          20   this is strictly a legal issue then there is no need for

          21   there to be testimony on it, and this witness is offered

          22   as supporting AT&T's position on Issue 1.  I don't

          23   intend to, as I said, go into a long legal discussion

          24   with him on it, I just want us to agree on a working

          25   definition.
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           1             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  I think the question is

           2   appropriate.  I don't think she's asking for the legal

           3   position on it.  She's trying to make sure that they are

           4   on the same page as to what it means.

           5             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Okay.  Thank you.

           6             MS. KAUFMAN:  Do you need me to --

           7             THE WITNESS:  If you don't mind restating.

           8             MS. KAUFMAN:  I will do my best.

           9   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

          10        Q.   I was just asking if you could agree with me

          11   in the context of your testimony that begins on Page 3

          12   that, in general, those equitable remedies there relate

          13   to a situation where a party I characterized as sits on

          14   their rights and doesn't take action to the detriment of

          15   another party.

          16        A.   In general, it's my understanding as a

          17   layperson that is what laches and estoppel comprise.

          18        Q.   And as I also understand your testimony, one

          19   of the positions that you have taken is that because the

          20   NewPhone interconnection agreement was executed prior to

          21   the agreement between Express Phone and AT&T, that that

          22   is one reason to refuse to recognize the adoption, is

          23   that correct?

          24        A.   Not in that reason taken literally.  The

          25   primary issue from AT&T Florida's perspective is, again,
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           1   that Express Phone sought to invoke 252(i) when they

           2   were already under a current and effective agreement.

           3   AT&T and NewPhone executed the agreement and it was

           4   approved.  So depending on the context, there was

           5   certainly a time where Express Phone could have come to

           6   us as a new entrant or negotiating a successor agreement

           7   and the 252(i) request would have been entirely

           8   appropriate.  So I hope I answered that.  I know I

           9   didn't necessarily go to your question, but --

          10        Q.   Well, my question relates specifically to your

          11   testimony at the bottom of 3 and top of 4 where you

          12   recite dates that you believe are relevant and that the

          13   Commission should take into account here.  And on Page 4

          14   beginning at Line 14 through Line 17, the question posed

          15   is, "Was the Image Access agreement in place when

          16   Express Phone entered into its ICA?"  And you say that

          17   it was.

          18             So my question is is your position that that

          19   somehow bars the adoption?

          20        A.   The adoption of --

          21             MS. KAUFMAN:  If you could answer -- I'm

          22   sorry.  I would ask that the Chairman to direct you to

          23   try to answer yes or no, if you can.

          24             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  That would be appropriate.

          25   If you could yes or no.  That is the preference to
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           1   answer yes or no and if you need to add an additional

           2   statement, then you can do that after, after the initial

           3   yes or no.

           4             THE WITNESS:  Can you ask it one more time?

           5   Sorry.

           6   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

           7        Q.   That's okay.  I think that I can, and I refer

           8   you to your testimony at the bottom of 3, top of 4,

           9   where you set out what I believe AT&T must think are

          10   dates that have some relevance to this case.

          11             And my question is is it AT&T's position that

          12   because the NewPhone agreement was executed before the

          13   Express Phone agreement that somehow that is a bar to

          14   the adoption?

          15        A.   Yes, with the caveat, again, the fact that the

          16   NewPhone agreement was approved and available at the

          17   time Express Phone came to us -- I know I'm going way

          18   beyond your direction, I apologize, Chairman.

          19             It could be NewPhone, it could be anybody.

          20   The fact of the matter is the adoption request was made

          21   before Express Phone was in their current agreement.

          22   The relevance of these dates, while it certainly ties

          23   into the facts of the case, it could be any CLEC.  It is

          24   a simple timing issue, it's just at this point in time

          25   Express Phone was under a current and effective
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           1   agreement in October of 2010.  So technically, yes, the

           2   fact that they had entered into an agreement in 2006 and

           3   the Image Access agreement was already effective

           4   technically would preclude them from being able to avail

           5   themselves of the adoption in our view.  But the

           6   significance of 2006, I think, is lost.  It's more what

           7   their current negotiation window and their current

           8   interconnection agreement called for that we are basing

           9   our position on.

          10        Q.   Okay.  And I just want to be clear, and I

          11   believe that I understand and the Commissioners

          12   understand the issue of the negotiation window.  You

          13   don't mention that in the section that we are looking

          14   at, and I'm just --

          15        A.   Fair enough.

          16        Q.   -- trying to understand if part of your

          17   position in this case, regardless -- let's pretend that

          18   negotiation window didn't exist.  Is it your position

          19   that a CLEC cannot adopt an agreement that was executed

          20   prior to its agreement?

          21        A.   No, that's not my position.  In essence --

          22   and, again, I don't mean to go on, either, but the

          23   agreement to be available for adoption would have to be

          24   executed prior to their agreement, would it not?

          25        Q.   I guess I'm not supposed to --
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           1        A.   The Image Access agreement was already

           2   approved, so it would have to be available before a CLEC

           3   could even identify it as a potential request to adopt.

           4        Q.   And is that the intent of the discussion

           5   mainly on Page 4 in regard of this chronology?

           6        A.   Well, the intent on Page 4 was simply to line

           7   out the timeline that the agreement was available at the

           8   time that Express Phone began negotiations with AT&T in

           9   2006.

          10        Q.   I think I might have asked you this already,

          11   and if I did, I apologize for repeating it.  Were you

          12   involved in any discussions with Express Phone leading

          13   up to their entry into their original ICA?

          14        A.   No, I wasn't.

          15        Q.   Okay.  Do you have any information or have you

          16   presented any evidence here today that would demonstrate

          17   that Express Phone was made aware by AT&T of the

          18   NewPhone agreement?

          19        A.   No, I would not.

          20        Q.   And would you agree with me, if you know, that

          21   the agreement that was presented to New -- I keep

          22   getting my phones mixed up, I'm sorry -- to Express

          23   Phone was the standard or template agreement?

          24        A.   To my knowledge at that time it was.  I know

          25   there has been a lot of discussion about the footer
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           1   standalone, but my understanding of that footer and our

           2   template agreements is such when a CLEC comes to AT&T to

           3   negotiate, if they express a desire to opt into a

           4   specific agreement, then we certainly would look at that

           5   and evaluate it.  If they come to us seeking to

           6   negotiate, they may identify an agreement they want to

           7   negotiate from, they may not, and if they identify a

           8   specific business plan whereby certain products and

           9   services that are governed under the interconnection

          10   agreement really are not applicable to what they desire

          11   to do, then we can offer a scaled down, if you will,

          12   interconnection agreement.

          13             The stand-alone footer that is on this

          14   agreement is a byproduct of the impact that this was a

          15   resale agreement.  I wasn't privy to the negotiations,

          16   I'm just going by what I see on the agreement, but

          17   apparently at that time Express Phone probably

          18   indicated -- you know, I defer to Mr. Armstrong if I'm

          19   wrong -- that they were doing resale only, so therefore

          20   we provided a resale only agreement to them.

          21        Q.   And I think Mr. Armstrong, you know, gave

          22   testimony as to how that went.  I guess what I'm trying

          23   to understand or just make clear, as far as you know,

          24   AT&T didn't inform Express Phone in regard to the

          25   NewPhone agreement being available, did they?
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           1        A.   No, we would not.  That is the CLEC's

           2   decision.  We certainly would help support the CLEC and

           3   guide them through the process once negotiations have

           4   ensued, but it is not AT&T's place to direct the CLEC to

           5   a specific agreement, given the fact that business plans

           6   are different.  Some terms and conditions may be very

           7   important to one carrier and not as important to others.

           8        Q.   And would that be -- that is AT&T's position

           9   regardless of whether interconnection agreements of

          10   other carriers have more favorable provisions than those

          11   being offered to the carrier engaged in the discussions?

          12        A.   Yes, it is, because it is not our position to

          13   determine what is favorable to one carrier over another.

          14   The terms speak for themselves.

          15        Q.   You would agree with me, would you not, that

          16   AT&T was certainly aware of the NewPhone agreement being

          17   in effect and available?

          18        A.   Yes, I would agree with that.

          19        Q.   Do you know in 2006 how many interconnection

          20   agreements AT&T had in the State of Florida?

          21        A.   In 2006, not exactly, no.

          22        Q.   Do you know how many employees Express Phone

          23   has?

          24        A.   No, I do not.

          25        Q.   If you would turn to Page 5 of your Direct
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           1   Testimony.

           2             MS. KAUFMAN:  And I have another exhibit,

           3   Commissioners, if I can figure out which one it is.

           4             THE WITNESS:  I'm on Page 5.

           5             MS. KAUFMAN:  If you will wait one second.

           6   Sorry.  And, again, this whole agreement, I believe, is

           7   in the record.  This is just an excerpt so we can deal

           8   with just this section.  So if I could have an exhibit

           9   number, Mr. Chairman.

          10             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Sure.  We are on Exhibit 45.

          11             (Exhibit Number 45 marked for identification.)

          12             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  And what would be your short

          13   title?

          14             MS. KAUFMAN:  Excerpt from Express Phone ICA.

          15             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.

          16             (Exhibit 45 marked for identification.)

          17   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

          18        Q.   Okay.  Let's take a look, Mr. Greenlaw, at the

          19   question and your response that begins on Page 5, Line

          20   14.

          21        A.   Okay.  I'm there in my testimony.

          22        Q.   And the question that's posed to you is what

          23   provisions of Express Phone's ICA are particularly

          24   relevant, and you list three sections there, correct?

          25        A.   That's correct.
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           1        Q.   And take a look at what has been distributed

           2   and has now been marked as Exhibit Number 45.  Would you

           3   accept that this is an excerpt from the same agreement

           4   that you're talking about?

           5        A.   I would.  In fact, I believe it's cited on

           6   Page 9 of my Direct.

           7        Q.   Take a look at Section 11 of the Express

           8   Phone/AT&T agreement, and would you agree with me that

           9   that provision specifically relates to adoption of

          10   agreements?

          11        A.   It does.

          12        Q.   You didn't cite that section in your relevant

          13   contractual provisions, did you?

          14        A.   Not in that question string, no.

          15        Q.   We have heard a lot of discussion here

          16   today -- and you have been in the room, have you not,

          17   during the entire day?

          18        A.   The vast majority of the time.  I understand

          19   the tenor.

          20        Q.   Okay.  And so I think you would agree with me

          21   that we have had discussion about the provisions in the

          22   NewPhone agreement which allow a carrier to dispute and

          23   hold as opposed to the conditions in the old -- I call

          24   it the old, the prior Express Phone/AT&T agreement which

          25   required the payment of all amounts in dispute.  You are
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           1   familiar with the two competing provisions?

           2        A.   Yes, I am.

           3        Q.   Would you agree with me that it is certainly a

           4   more favorable term to a CLEC to be able to dispute and

           5   hold rather than being required to pay all disputed

           6   amounts?

           7        A.   Looking at that term by itself, obviously it

           8   would be more favorable for a CLEC not to have to pay

           9   anything in the interim while a dispute is being

          10   resolved, yes.

          11        Q.   And the reason the CLEC, as you termed it,

          12   wouldn't pay anything is because those amounts are in

          13   dispute, right, there is a dispute between AT&T and the

          14   carrier?

          15        A.   If they are invoking that specific language,

          16   yes.

          17        Q.   You also say on Page 7 of your Direct

          18   Testimony, at Line 16 you talk about there being a

          19   material breach of the original Express Phone and AT&T

          20   contract, correct?

          21        A.   Yes, I do.

          22        Q.   Would you agree that there would also be a

          23   material breach of the Express Phone/AT&T contract if

          24   AT&T failed to apply the appropriate wholesale discount?

          25        A.   I don't know if I can answer that.  I mean,
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           1   breach, material breach is a somewhat broad term.  I was

           2   using it in the context of a direct violation of the

           3   terms of the agreement that are clear.  I'm not a

           4   billing SME, I think the term was used earlier, per se.

           5        Q.   Me, either.

           6        A.   So I guess I would need a more detailed

           7   example.

           8        Q.   Okay.  Let me try it this way.  I want you to

           9   just assume because neither am I anywhere close to a

          10   billing SME, I want you to assume for the purposes of

          11   this question that law requires the application of a

          12   wholesale discount under the contract and that AT&T has

          13   failed to apply that discount.  That would be a breach

          14   of the agreement, would it not?

          15        A.   I guess it depends on the definition of

          16   breach.  Typically, I would think that would be a

          17   dispute before it became a breach.

          18        Q.   I will accept that.  And once the parties, you

          19   know, attempted to resolve it and AT&T continued to

          20   assume -- not apply the required discount, they would be

          21   in breach of their agreement, would they not?  This is a

          22   hypothetical.

          23        A.   We've done those today, I guess.  I apologize

          24   if this sounds evasive.  I don't really know what would

          25   necessarily constitute a breach under that circumstance.
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           1   Typically, I would think if there was still a dispute

           2   after the dispute resolution process had started, we

           3   would probably be before these folks here today

           4   discussing that.

           5        Q.   On Page 10 you also -- not also, but on Page

           6   10 beginning at Line 3, you talk about the requirement

           7   that Express Phone act in good faith, correct?

           8        A.   Yes.

           9        Q.   Both parties have an obligation to act in good

          10   faith under the agreement, don't they?

          11        A.   Certainly.

          12        Q.   Now, on Page 12, if you turn there, on Line 3

          13   you talk about -- you are talking about what we called

          14   the notices, what you called the requests that Express

          15   Phone sent to AT&T.  And on Line 2, you say the request

          16   letters do not supersede or take the place of the

          17   required notice of adoption, and you capitalize notice

          18   of adoption, and that made me curious.

          19             Are you referring to some Commission-required

          20   form or rule when you used the phrase notice of

          21   adoption?

          22        A.   I capitalized that because as we go down the

          23   lines we reference the Nextel adoption order, and it was

          24   capitalized in that manner.

          25        Q.   So you weren't intending to suggest that there
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           1   is any requirement or form at the Commission that

           2   requires a filing of a notice of adoption?

           3        A.   I don't believe I said that.

           4        Q.   I just want to clarify, because when you

           5   capitalized it, it raised that issue.

           6        A.   Okay.  No, I'm not saying that.  We would

           7   still expect to see a notice of adoption, not a request.

           8        Q.   Then in that same paragraph, the next sentence

           9   that starts on Line 4, you say instead letters -- and I

          10   assume you're referring to the October 20th letter from

          11   Express Phone -- are intended to simply start the

          12   process by which AT&T would review the request for

          13   adoption.

          14             Again, referencing back to 252(i) in the

          15   rules, is there any language in there that suggests AT&T

          16   is supposed to be reviewing adoption requests?

          17        A.   Well, again, taking 252(i) by itself, no.

          18        Q.   Let me ask you to turn to your rebuttal,

          19   please, Page 5.  Line 9 is where the question begins.

          20             Are you with me?

          21        A.   Yes, I am.

          22        Q.   Okay.  And that question asked you to respond

          23   to Express Phone's assertion that AT&T Florida takes too

          24   long to address disputes, correct?

          25        A.   That's correct.
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           1        Q.   And you state there that you disagree with

           2   Express Phone's assertion.  Have you reviewed the

           3   Express Phone files and the disputes that they have

           4   filed with AT&T?

           5        A.   Not in detail, no.  Are you referring to the

           6   prior Docket 110071, or are you referring to the actual

           7   context of individual disputes?

           8        Q.   I'm asking you if you have reviewed the actual

           9   context of the original disputes?

          10        A.   No, I have not.

          11        Q.   Okay.  You would agree with me, would you not,

          12   that under the interconnection agreement when a dispute

          13   is denied that Express Phone has the right to escalate

          14   that dispute?

          15        A.   Yes, that's part of the process.

          16        Q.   Okay.  And have you reviewed any of Express

          17   Phone's requests for escalation?

          18        A.   No, not directly.

          19        Q.   Would it surprise you to know that when

          20   Express Phone has attempted to escalate a dispute it has

          21   been ignored by AT&T?

          22        A.   Would that surprise me?  The characterization

          23   of ignored, yes, that would surprise me.

          24        Q.   Okay.  So it would surprise you to learn that

          25   Express Phone receives no response when they try to
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           1   escalate a dispute?

           2        A.   Again, I'm not really privy to what disputes

           3   have gone on and the responses AT&T has provided.  They

           4   certainly would have an escalation process to reach

           5   somebody in our billing department if they felt they

           6   weren't getting an answer from the representative that

           7   initially got the claim.

           8        Q.   And so you don't know whether or not those

           9   escalations have simply been ignored by AT&T?

          10        A.   I do not know that, no.

          11        Q.   Do you know Nicole Brazi (phonetic)?

          12        A.   I know her casually, yes.  She is a product

          13   manager that supports resale.

          14        Q.   If you know, is part of her responsibility to

          15   deal with disputes and escalations?

          16        A.   I don't know her direct job responsibilities.

          17   There are multiple product managers in that group.

          18             MS. KAUFMAN:  Could I have a second, Mr.

          19   Chairman?

          20             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Sure.

          21             MS. KAUFMAN:  I'm just asking if I could have

          22   a minute.  (Pause.)  I've got one more question for you.

          23   BY MS. KAUFMAN:

          24        Q.   Are you aware that there have been situations

          25   where AT&T has permitted adoption during the term of an
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           1   existing agreement?

           2        A.   Upon investigation for some of the

           3   interrogatories in this case, we did find one case of

           4   that occurring.  And I believe it's provided in a

           5   response.  I don't know if I have it up in front of me

           6   today, though.

           7        Q.   You didn't review that, did you?

           8        A.   When the request came in?

           9        Q.   (Indicating affirmatively.)

          10        A.   No, I did not.  I was at a different position

          11   in the company at that time.  It was five years ago, I

          12   think.

          13             MS. KAUFMAN:  I think I'm done, Mr. Chairman.

          14   Thank you, Mr. Greenlaw.

          15             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Thank you.  Staff?

          16             MS. TAN:  Staff has no questions.

          17             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Commissioners.  All right.

          18   Commissioner Balbis.

          19             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          20   And I just have one question.  And I think Ms. Kaufman

          21   asked it, but I want to make sure that at least I'm

          22   clear on it.  The provision of a negotiation window, as

          23   you described it, I mean, is that a standard provision

          24   in a wholesale contract?

          25             THE WITNESS:  It is.

                           FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                    305

           1             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  And in your

           2   experience as either associate director or area manager

           3   of wholesale contracts, have you had any other requests

           4   to adopt another interconnect agreement outside of that

           5   window?

           6             THE WITNESS:  I'm not directly aware of any.

           7   I'll try to answer a little more -- unfortunately, sir,

           8   I may not be answering your direct question.  I'm not

           9   aware of any.  I think the cases that were cited years

          10   prior were typically regarding a dispute over the

          11   subject agreement being requested, not the status of the

          12   current CLEC making the request in their current

          13   agreement.  This, by my knowledge, is the first time we

          14   have had such a complaint.

          15             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  So to your knowledge no

          16   one has requested adoption of another ICA outside of the

          17   negotiation window provision of the contract?

          18             THE WITNESS:  To my knowledge, no, other than,

          19   I guess, obviously to Ms. Kaufman's point the exception

          20   we noted in our discovery response in 2007.  They were

          21   outside of the window.  I don't know the particulars

          22   behind why that was done and why it was accepted,

          23   though, sir.

          24             COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.

          25   That's all I had.
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           1             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Commissioner Graham.

           2             COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

           3             Welcome, Mr. Greenlaw.  I just want to see if

           4   I understand.  Back in the Fall of 2006, any CLEC that

           5   came before BellSouth that looked for an interconnection

           6   agreement didn't have any specifics they were looking

           7   for, this agreement that was given to Express Phone is

           8   pretty much what you gave to anybody.

           9             THE WITNESS:  Not necessarily, but I think I

          10   understand your question.  If a CLEC came to BellSouth

          11   at that time and did not identify an agreement they

          12   wanted to get into, or identify an agreement they were

          13   wanting to negotiate from, obviously our starting point

          14   would be these agreements.

          15             Now, the distinction I want to make, though,

          16   you can't just say any CLEC only, because some CLECs

          17   that maybe had a business plan that involved

          18   collocation, or UNEs, interconnection, the generic

          19   agreement, if you will, that they would have been

          20   provided would have been, of course, different than the

          21   one Express Phone was provided.  The agreement that

          22   Express Phone was provided at the time would have been

          23   our standard template agreement for CLECs that had

          24   indicated they were only doing resale.

          25             COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  Now, was that a
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           1   management decision that everybody that comes in that

           2   meets these criteria gets this agreement?

           3             THE WITNESS:  Well, it's really driven by the

           4   CLEC.  But I guess from the standpoint of creating --

           5   again, I'm using the term generic -- from creating a

           6   generic agreement and making that the starting point if

           7   we weren't given any specific direction by the CLEC to

           8   guide us on where to start from, the answer would be

           9   yes.  But, again, we would have been available to

          10   negotiate, contrary to what has been purported today.

          11             COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  I guess the question is,

          12   so I take it this wasn't the first time that specific

          13   agreement was given to somebody.  Do you know when that

          14   specific agreement was drafted?

          15             THE WITNESS:  Unfortunately, I don't.  I guess

          16   you could say I'm not an AT&T native from the BellSouth

          17   Regional Bells, so unfortunately I can't give you

          18   specific information at that time.  I will say it was

          19   common from the inception of the Act where we would --

          20   to try to speed the process along and assist the CLECs

          21   rather than starting from a blank page, we would start

          22   from a generic agreement.  Over time those generic

          23   agreements are updated to reflect change of law, et

          24   cetera.

          25             COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  The same question I
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           1   asked Mr. Armstrong earlier, who do you think carries

           2   the burden of coming up with the best deal?

           3             THE WITNESS:  Well, of course, I respectfully

           4   disagree with Mr. Armstrong.  I feel it's incumbent upon

           5   the CLEC to identify what the terms and conditions are

           6   that they feel is the best deal.  And obviously if we

           7   can't come to agreement there are avenues available to

           8   them per the Act that would allow them to have their

           9   side heard.

          10             COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  Is this the first time

          11   that AT&T has run into this sort of problem?

          12             THE WITNESS:  And I apologize, do you mean a

          13   problem with respect to a 252(i) request with a carrier

          14   being outside of their negotiation window, or a dispute

          15   in general that would be brought before the Commission?

          16             COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  Specifically not

          17   outside, necessarily, the negotiation window, but

          18   where -- and excuse me if I say something that is

          19   legally wrong, but that is not in good standing

          20   according to AT&T that got denied switching to a new

          21   agreement?

          22             THE WITNESS:  Not to my knowledge, but I

          23   assure you I'm probably more capable of saying something

          24   legally wrong than you are.

          25             COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  Okay.
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           1             Thank you, Mr. Chair.

           2             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Thank you.

           3             Going back to the resale stand-alone

           4   agreement, can you sort of talk about the different

           5   types of agreements that you all deal with and why the

           6   designation of a resale stand-alone agreement is so

           7   different than some of the other ones?

           8             THE WITNESS:  I'm sorry, sir, what was your

           9   question specific to that?  Just why they are different?

          10             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Yes.  Sort of go through the

          11   difference between, say, a resale stand-alone versus a

          12   contract that includes a collocation or a contract that

          13   has sort of reciprocal traffic going back and forth and

          14   so forth.

          15             THE WITNESS:  Understood.  I will try to

          16   answer it, at least to the level I can get to.  I mean,

          17   when you look at provisions such as dispute resolution,

          18   general terms and conditions, a lot of the legal things

          19   that, again, I may get wrong, those terms typically are

          20   fairly analogous.  But when you get into a position

          21   where you have a carrier that is ordering UNEs from us,

          22   there are entire sections dedicated to that to ensure

          23   that the provisions of the Act, any law is memorialized

          24   properly.

          25             And so, again, it's really a matter of just
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           1   efficiency.  If a CLEC is not interested in that, that

           2   is not part of their business plan, there is really no

           3   need to put that in the agreement.  And I know that

           4   sounds like a simplistic answer, but that's really the

           5   basis of it as I understand it.

           6             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  So from your

           7   perspective, the contracts are pretty much the same

           8   other than removing certain provisions based upon the

           9   service that is provided, the additional service that is

          10   provided?

          11             THE WITNESS:  Well, I wouldn't say pretty much

          12   the same.  I guess if they were pretty much the same, we

          13   probably wouldn't be here today.  But the key

          14   differences, I guess I would say from if you want to

          15   compare apples-to-apples and, say, take our generic

          16   interconnection agreement versus our generic resale

          17   agreement, in that instance, you know, a lot of the

          18   common terms and conditions would be the same, but the

          19   provisions that govern the purchase of those services in

          20   question are typically what would be different.

          21             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  What is the

          22   relationship between Express Phone and Digital Express

          23   with respect to AT&T?  What is the individual

          24   relationships of each one of those with AT&T, if you can

          25   answer that?
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           1             THE WITNESS:  Well, I mean, obviously they are

           2   both CLECs.  Digital Express in a current and effective

           3   agreement with AT&T, Express Phone's agreement has since

           4   expired, and, of course, we are here in front of this

           5   Commission to hear this dispute.  Were you asking me

           6   with respect to the types of services they are

           7   purchasing?

           8             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  No, not about respect to the

           9   type of services.  Without putting words into your mouth

          10   or anyone else's mouth, is there any relationship

          11   between Express Phone and Digital Express in the mind of

          12   AT&T?

          13             THE WITNESS:  Well, they certainly have common

          14   personnel involved with running both companies.  I mean,

          15   that's -- technically, legally they are different

          16   entities, so we have to treat them as such, which is,

          17   again, part of the reason why, despite some of these

          18   commonalities, the Digital Express adoption request was

          19   allowed, because they came to us as a new entrant, if

          20   you will, or at least not in a current agreement that

          21   was not in a negotiation window.  So pursuant to the way

          22   we address 252(i) we had to give them their requested

          23   agreement, which in this case was that NewPhone

          24   agreement in question.

          25             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Okay.  I want to ask you sort
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           1   of a very simplistic question.  If AT&T would consider

           2   Express Phone to be a bad actor, okay, because obviously

           3   we are here, so the thought would be that they would be

           4   a bad actor, why would AT&T enter into a contract with

           5   the same people and the same, in essence, entity to do

           6   business to start from sort of -- give them an

           7   opportunity to start from a new page under a different

           8   name?

           9             THE WITNESS:  I understand.  Well, again,

          10   AT&T -- and, again, I realize it's part of the crux of

          11   this dispute, but we don't apply 252(i) in a

          12   discriminatory basis.  We can't discriminate based on

          13   who's running the company.  Where that typically would

          14   come in, possibly, is not in 252(i), but in the types of

          15   security deposit, if you will, that we might request.

          16   But we have to base that on the information provided to

          17   us by the carrier, too.

          18             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  Thank you.

          19   That's all the questions that I have.

          20             I don't know if Commissioners have any further

          21   questions?  Seeing none, AT&T, if you would like to

          22   redirect.

          23             MS. MONTGOMERY:  We have no redirect, Mr.

          24   Chairman.

          25             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  Thank you very
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           1   much.  At this time we are going to deal with exhibits.

           2             Ms. Montgomery.

           3             MS. MONTGOMERY:  Thank you.  We would move in

           4   the admission of Exhibits 22 through 24, and 27 through

           5   34.

           6             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  Are there any

           7   objections to those exhibits, Ms. Kaufman?

           8             MS. KAUFMAN:  Sorry, Mr. Chairman, no.  No

           9   objection.

          10             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  There are any

          11   exhibits that you would like to enter?

          12             MS. KAUFMAN:  Yes.  I think I would like to

          13   Exhibit 45.  Thank you.

          14             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  45.  Okay.  Let the record

          15   reflect that all of those exhibits have been entered

          16   into the record.

          17             (Exhibit Numbers 22 through 24; 27 through 34;

          18   and 45 admitted into the record.)

          19             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Let's see what else we have.

          20   Thank you very much for your testimony today.

          21             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

          22             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  Are there any other matters

          23   that we need to address at that time?  All right.

          24             Let's think about some dates, so if staff can

          25   help us work through some dates here.
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           1             MS. TAN:  Sure.  The hearing transcript is due

           2   May 14th, 2012.  Briefs are due June 1st, 2012.  The

           3   staff's recommendation will be filed June 27th, 2012,

           4   for the July 10th, 2010 Commission Conference, and the

           5   final order is due July 30th, 2012.

           6             CHAIRMAN BRISÉ:  All right.  Are there any

           7   further comments, or questions, or anything from the

           8   Commission board up here?

           9             Seeing none, we stand adjourned.  Thank you

          10   very much and have a great day.

          11             MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Commissioners.

          12             (The hearing concluded at 2:53 p.m.)
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